
 

From: Democratic Services Unit – any further information may be obtained from the reporting 
officer or from Carolyn Eaton, Principal Democratic Services Officer, 0161 342 3050 or 
carolyn.eaton@tameside.gov.uk, to whom any apologies for absence should be notified. 

 

SPEAKERS PANEL (LIQUOR LICENSING) 
 

Day: Thursday 
Date: 25 February 2021 
Time: 10.00 am 
Place: Zoom Meeting 

 

Item 
No. 

AGENDA Page 
No 

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

 To receive any apologies for absence.  

2   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 To receive any declarations of interest.  

3   MINUTES  1 - 6 

 To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the proceedings of the 
Speakers’ Panel (Liquor Licensing) held on 26 January 2021 (attached). 

 

4   APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE – AUDENSHAW SERVICE 
STATION, 1 – 17 DROYLSDEN ROAD, AUDENSHAW, M34 5SP  

7 - 60 

 To consider the attached report of the Assistant Director, Operations and 
Neighbourhoods. 

 

Public Document Pack

mailto:Carolyn.eaton@tameside.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

SPEAKERS PANEL (LIQUOR LICENSING) 
 

26 January 2021 
 

Commenced: 10.00am Terminated: 2.45pm  

Present: Councillors Sweeton (Chair), Bowden and Quinn 

In Attendance: Mike Robinson 

James Horton 

David Joy 

Ashleigh Melia 

PC Thorley 

James Mallion 
 

Richard Taylor 

Joanne Hipkiss 

Adam Hancox 

Regulatory Services Manager, TMBC 

Regulatory Compliance Officer, TMBC 

Legal Representative, TMBC 

Legal Services Officer, TMBC (observer) 

Greater Manchester Police 

Consultant Public Health, TMBC (present for 
part of the meeting) 

Gosschalks Solicitors 

Licensing Manager, Ei Group Limited 

Regional Manager, Ei Group Limited 
 
 
14.  
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 
15. MINUTES 
 
The Minutes of the previous meetings held on 11 January 2021 and 12 January 2021 were agreed 
as a correct record. 
 
 
16. 
 

APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE – JOLLY HATTERS, 119 
TOWN LANE, DENTON, M34 2DJ 

 
Consideration was given to an application for a review of a premises licence for Jolly Hatters, 119 
Town Lane, Denton, M34 2DJ. 
 
It was explained that the Premises Licence Holder of Jolly Hatters, 119 Town Lane, Denton was Ei 
Group Limited of 3 Monkspath Hall Road, Solihull B90 4SJ.  A copy of the Premises Licence was 
appended to the report to Panel and identified the current licensable activities and operating hours 
for the premises. 
 
On 4 December 2020, the Licensing Authority, acting in its capacity as a Responsible Authority 
under the Licensing Act 2003, submitted an application for a review of the premises.  A copy of the 
Premises Licence Review Application was attached to the report. 
 
Mr Robinson presented the report to the Panel and identified the steps available to the Panel in 
determining the review (s52 (4) Licensing Act 2003).  Mr Robinson informed the Panel of the brief 
background to the review as set out in the report and summarised the representations received 
from:- 
 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 
 

 
 

 The Licensing Authority 

 Greater Manchester Police 

 Tameside MBC Population Health 
 
Mr Robinson also referred to four representations received from local residents.  The identity of the 
local residents had previously been disclosed to and verified by the Licensing Authority.  However, 
the residents request for anonymity in the hearing was maintained during the hearing.   
 

 Resident A (Representation at Appendix 11 of the report)  

 Resident B (Representation at Appendix 12 of the report)  

 Residents C (Representation at Appendix 13 of the report)  

 Resident D (Representation at Appendix 14 of the report)  
 
Mr Horton, Regulatory Compliance Officer, Tameside MBC, presented the Review application 
(appended to the report to the Panel) on behalf of the Licensing Authority.  Mr Horton referred to 
his witness statement and exhibits, which were attached to the report.  Mr Horton informed the 
Panel that agreement had been reached with the Premises Licence Holder to modify the conditions 
on the licence with a view to promoting the licensing objectives.  Mr Horton had the opportunity to 
consider the proposed conditions and confirmed that he was satisfied with the conditions and 
considered that they would meet the licensing objectives going forward. 
 
Mr Robinson commented that whilst the proposed conditions were acceptable the Panel could 
consider (in view of the concerns raised by some residents) conditions requiring the Premises 
Licence Holder / Designated Premises Supervisor to undertake perimeter checks and other steps 
to prevent noise escape whilst music was being played in the premises.    

 
Mr Mallion then presented the representation that had been submitted on behalf of Tameside MBC 
Population Health (appended to the report to the Panel).  The content was noted by the Panel in 
particular the local levels of infection and deaths from Covid and the importance of premises 
complying with Covid restrictions. 
 
PC Thorley presented a representation (appended to the report to the Panel) on behalf of Greater 
Manchester Police.  A witness statement from PC Thorley detailed the police investigation and the 
content of the CCTV.   
 
An application was made by Greater Manchester Police to exclude the public and press for part of 
the hearing, namely, whilst the CCTV evidence was presented.  The grounds of the application 
were that the CCTV identified persons not involved in any illegal activity.  
 
Having applied the public interest test (Sch 12A LGA 1972/Reg 14 of the Licensing Hearing Regs) 
the Panel decided to proceed with the hearing in private but only whilst the CCTV was played and 
any questions regarding the CCTV content were asked and answered.  The Panel considered that 
to proceed with this part of the hearing in public would be prejudicial to the interests of the persons 
identified on the CCTV and more generally, the interests of justice.   
 
Key extracts of the CCTV recordings of the premises on the relevant dates were played in the 
private part of the hearing.  Once this part of the hearing was concluded, the hearing returned to 
public session. 
 
PC Thorley informed the Panel that agreement had been reached with the Premises Licence 
Holder to modify the conditions on the licence with a view to promoting the licensing objectives.  
He had the opportunity to consider the proposed conditions and confirmed that he was satisfied 
with the conditions and considered that they would meet the licensing objectives going forward.  
He supported the idea of the Premises Licence Holder / Designated Premises Supervisor to 
undertake perimeter checks.   
 

Page 2



 
 

 
 

Mr Robinson read out Resident D’s written representation (appended to the report to the Panel).  
Resident D then spoke in the hearing by telephone (on loudspeaker) and answered questions. 
 
Residents C referred to their written representation (appended to the report to the Panel) and 
answered questions. 
 
Mr Robinson read out Resident A’s written representation (appended to the report to the Panel) 
who had left the meeting prior to this point and had not returned, and Resident B’s written 
representation (appended to the report to the Panel). 
 
The hearing adjourned at 12.26 for a lunch break and re-convened at 12.58. 
 
Mr Taylor, on behalf of the Premises Licence Holder, addressed the Panel and acknowledged that 
the CCTV made for very poor viewing as did the management of the premises at this time.  He 
explained that Ei Group Limited had supported the Designated Premises Supervisor to help 
manage the premises and had been in regular contact with them.  Following a number of issues, 
the Designated Premises Supervisor had been removed in September 2020.  However, contrary to 
clear instructions, the Designated Premises Supervisor opened up to trade.   
 
Mr Taylor informed the Panel that following discussions between the Premises Licence Holder, the 
Licensing Authority and Greater Manchester Police, an agreement had been reached, subject to 
consideration / approval by this Panel, in relation to appropriate conditions to add to those currently 
in Annex 2 to the licence.  The proposed conditions are appended to the Minutes at Appendix A 
and if approved would appear in Annex 3 to the licence.  
 
In order to address noise issues whilst music was being played in the premises, other proposed 
conditions included closing windows and undertaking perimeter checks, were agreed by Ei Group 
Limited.  It was stated that good management was also key, however, there was no proposal to 
appoint a new Designated Premises Supervisor at present and the premises were still subject to 
national lockdown restrictions.     
 
All parties were provided with the opportunity to ask questions in relation to the representations 
made. 
 
All parties were invited to provide a brief statement in summary. 
 
Members of the Panel then retired to carefully consider the written report, representations and 
questions and answers during the hearing in addition to all the information provided.  The Panel 
were accompanied by the Legal Representative and the Senior Democratic Services Officer who 
provided legal and procedural advice only and took no part in the decision making process. 
 
In determining this matter, the Panel had due regard to:- 
 

 all oral and written evidence and submissions 

 the Council's Statement of Licensing Policy  

 the relevant sections of the Licensing Act 2003 and Regulations made thereunder  

 the Guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 182 of that Act 
 
The Panel noted that in determining the review it must, having regard to the application and any 
relevant representations, take such steps as identified in s52(4) of the Licensing Act 2003 as it 
considered appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives, in particular, public safety, the 
prevention of crime and disorder and the prevention of public nuisance.   
 
The Panel noted the recent incidents at the premises as outlined in the report to Panel and the 
details in the Review Application, the representations and supporting evidence.  
 
 

Page 3



 
 

 
 

The Panel noted that:- 

 Local residents had reported problems with crime, disorder, anti-social behaviour and 
nuisance at the premises over a long period, particularly late in the evening and at the front 
of the premises.  

 The premises have had a serious adverse impact on the local community with regard to 
crime and disorder and nuisance. 

 In 2018 following a review application by the Police, the Manager at the time was removed 
and additional conditions were added to the premises licence.  

 On 4 July 2020, an inspection at the premises found them to be non-compliant with the 
coronavirus regulations.  Following the visit, concerns were raised with Ei Group Limited 
that the Designated Premises Supervisor was unable to manage the premises effectively 
and verbal warnings were given. 

 On 11 July 2020, the premises were trading beyond the permitted hours with customers on 
the premises until 4.00am (confirmed by CCTV).  Following which, Ei Group Limited were 
issued with a warning letter. 

 On 14 August 2020, an inspection of the premises revealed that a jukebox in the premises 
was being operated and the volume of music was at an unacceptably loud level in breach 
of Government Guidance.  Ei Group Limited were issued with a warning letter. 

 On 15 August 2020, a large brawl involving approximately 15-20 people took place inside 
the premises and spilled out onto the street.  The incident was not reported to the Police.  
CCTV identified that prior to the fight taking place, Covid regulations had been breached, 
large groups were together / not socially distanced and the Designated Premises 
Supervisor had been watching football and drinking within the large group.  Ei Group 
Limited were requested to stop showing football matches.   

 On 11 September 2020, an inspection of the premises revealed a DJ playing loud music.  
The Designated Premises Supervisor was asked to turn the music down.  The Designated 
Premises Supervisor, who was extremely intoxicated, became confrontational towards the 
Police.  A warning letter was issued to the Designated Premises Supervisor. 

 On 14 September 2020, the Licensing Authority contacted Ei Group Limited to request the 
immediate removal of the Designated Premises Supervisor and voluntary closure of the 
premises.  Ei Group Limited terminated its contract with the Designated Premises 
Supervisor and confirmed that the premises would remain closed whilst the Designated 
Premises Supervisor remained on site until a replacement was appointed.  

 However, on 17 September 2020, the premises re-opened and were inspected.  The 
inspection revealed that the Designated Premises Supervisor was on the premises and 
intoxicated.  Greater Manchester Police served a Closure Notice under the Antisocial 
Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014, closing the premises for 24 hours.   

 On 18 September 2020, a Direction Notice was served under the Health Protection 
(Coronavirus Restrictions) England Regulations 2020.  This notice required the premises to 
close from 18 September 2020 until 12 October 2020.   

 On 18 September 2020, Ei Group Limited submitted an application to the Council to 
remove Ms Deborah McCallum from the position of Designated Premises Supervisor at the 
premises.  

 In October / November 2020 a Neighbourhood survey was undertaken.  This revealed that 
a number of local residents had concerns regarding the problems of crime, disorder and 
nuisance linked with the premises.    

 In November 2020, the Licensing Authority and Greater Manchester Police held a meeting 
with Ei Group Limited.  Proposals to modify the licence were discussed.  Proposals had 
recently been submitted and agreed by the Licensing Authority and Greater Manchester 
Police.  

 The Licensing Department had received historical complaints regarding disorder and 
antisocial behaviour, including noise and drug use associated with the premises dating 
back through the tenure of previously appointed Designated Premises Supervisors at the 
premises.  

 Ei Group Limited had provided relevant information and advice to the Designated Premises 
Supervisor to avoid a breach of the Covid restrictions. 

Page 4



 
 

 
 

The Panel considered all available options and had real concerns in respect of the adverse impact 
that the premises have had on the local community and seriously considered the option of 
revocation of the licence. 
 
However, on balance, having carefully scrutinised the proposed change in trading hours and 
additional conditions, the Panel considered that the imposition of reduced trading alongside 
additional conditions would be a proportionate and appropriate response to the identified issues.   
 
The Panel noted the existing conditions including the mandatory conditions, which prohibited 
irresponsible drinks promotions, including those which could reasonably be considered to condone 
or encourage anti-social behaviour.  The Panel remained concerned about the promotion of the 
premises as a ‘Sports Bar’ with drinks promotions and expected that the Premises Licence Holder 
to review this going forward as necessary to promote the licensing objectives.    
 
Accordingly, the Panel concluded that the step that it considered appropriate to promote the 
licensing objectives, in particular the prevention of crime and disorder and the prevention of public 
nuisance, was to reduce the trading hours and modify the conditions attached to the licence. 
 
RESOLVED 
That the conditions listed at Appendix A be added to the Premises Licence at Annex 3 with 
immediate effect.   
 
 
 

Page 5



 
 

 
 

APPENDIX A 
 
 

Jolly Hatters, 119 Town Lane, Denton, M34 2DJ 
 
Reduction in hours 
 

 The terminal hour for all licensable activities permitted by the premises licence is to be 
reduced to 2300. 

 The closing time of the premises is to be amended to 2330. 

 New Years Eve hours to be 0900 – 0100 (closing 30 minutes thereafter). 
  
Additional Conditions 
 

1. There will be no consumption of alcohol or other drinks permitted in the front garden area. 
No furniture (e.g. benches, chairs, tables) shall be placed in the front garden area.  
 

2. The Designated Premises Supervisor will risk assess the need for door supervision and 
engage SIA registered door supervisors on such dates, in such numbers and between such 
times as identified as necessary by the risk assessment. 

 
3. In addition to the above requirement, whenever any of the events listed below are to be 

shown on televisions within the premises, a minimum of two SIA door supervisors shall be 
employed at the premises, two hours before the start of each event specified below until 30 
minutes after the close of business -  
 

i. Any football match involving Manchester City or Manchester United  
ii. Any international football match when England are playing in the Euros, World Cup 

or any international qualifier 
iii. Any other match deemed as high risk by Greater Manchester Police and notified to 

the Designated Premises Supervisor as such 
iv. Any boxing, wrestling or mixed martial arts shown with a domestic fighter involved 
v. Any other sporting event specified notified to the Designated Premises Supervisor 

by Greater Manchester Police 
 

4. Whenever the premises are open for licensable activities after 2000, a personal licence 
holder will be on the premises. 

 
5. To prevent noise nuisance, all windows and doors at the premise must be kept closed at 

any time when regulated entertainment, live music (amplified or unamplified), recorded 
music or any other type of entertainment (amplified or unamplified) is being performed at 
the premise, except to allow people to enter or exit. 

 
6. No noise shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the 

structure of the premises that gives rise to a nuisance. 
 

7. The Designated Premises Supervisor must ensure that perimeter inspections are 
undertaken every hour when regulated entertainment, live music (amplified or unamplified), 
recorded music or any other type of entertainment (amplified or unamplified) is taking place.  
These inspections must be recorded in a book, which must be made available for 
inspection to Local Authority Officers and Greater Manchester Police on request. 
 

8. No music to be played outside at any time. 
 

Page 6



 

Report to:  SPEAKERS PANEL (LIQUOR LICENSING) 

Date: 25 February 2021 

Reporting Officer: Emma Varnam – Assistant Director Operations & Neighbourhoods  

Subject: APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE – AUDENSHAW 
SERVICE STATION, 1 – 17 DROYLSDEN ROAD, AUDENSHAW, 
M34 5SP  

Report Summary: Members are requested to determine the application 

Recommendations: Having regard to the application and the relevant representations, 
Members are invited to take such steps (if any) as it considers 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.  The steps 
available are: 

(a) to grant the licence subject to – 
      (i) such conditions that the authority considers appropriate for 

the promotion of the licensing objectives, and 
      (ii) current mandatory conditions. 
(b) to exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable 

activities to which the application relates; 
(c) to refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises 

supervisor; or 
(d) to reject the application. 

Corporate Plan: Living Well – Improve satisfaction with local community 

Policy Implications: Members are provided with policy guidelines to assist in the decision 
making process. 

Financial Implications: 
(Authorised by the 
statutory Section 151 
Officer & Chief Finance 
Officer) 

There are limited financial implications for the Council, as detailed 
in the report, however, any legal challenge to a policy decision may 
potentially incur costs. 

Legal Implications: 

(Authorised by the 
Borough Solicitor) 

In determining the application the Panel must do so with a view to 
promoting the licensing objectives.  The Panel must have regard to 
its own licensing policy and the Guidance issued pursuant to s182 
Licensing Act 2003.  The Panel’s decision must be supported with 
reasons.  

If the Panel rejects the application that decision can be challenged 
by the Applicant.  If the Panel grants the licence the Applicant can 
appeal against any of the conditions imposed on the licence or 
against a decision to refuse to specify a person in the licence as the 
premises supervisor.  Any person who made relevant 
representations can appeal against the decision to grant the licence 
or against any of the conditions imposed on the licence or on the 
grounds that the Panel should have refused to specify a person in 
the licence as the premises supervisor.  Any challenge would be by 
way of an appeal to the Magistrate’s Court which may dismiss the 
appeal, substitute for the decision appealed against any other 
decision which could have been made by the licensing authority, or 
remit the case to the licensing authority to dispose of it in 
accordance with the direction of the court, and may make such order 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



 

as to costs as it thinks fit. If an appeal were successful the 
Magistrates would be unlikely to order costs against the Local 
Authority if the authority had acted honestly, reasonably, properly 
and on grounds that reasonably appeared to be sound, in exercise 
of its public duty. 

Risk Management: Failure to give full consideration to the determination of licensing 
issues has the potential to impact on public safety. 

Access to Information: The author of the report is Mike Robinson, Regulatory Services 
Manager (Licensing). 

Background Information: The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by 
contacting Mike Robinson 

Telephone: 0161 342 4122 

e-mail: mike.robinson@tameside.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 8



 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 Section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 outlines the procedure whereby an application can be 

made to the Licensing Authority for a premises licence. 
 
1.2 Section 18(3) of the Licensing Act 2003 states that where relevant representations are made 

in respect of such an application, the authority must: 
(a) hold a hearing to consider them, unless the authority, the applicant and each person who 

has made such representations agree that a hearing is unnecessary, and 
(b) having regard to the representations, take such steps as mentioned in subsection (4) (if 

any) as it considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
1.3 The steps mentioned in subsection (4) are: 
 
 (a) to grant the licence subject to – 

(i) such conditions that the authority considers appropriate for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives, and 

(ii)   current mandatory conditions; 
(b) to exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to which the 

application relates; 
 (c) to refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor; 
 (d) to reject the application. 
 
 
2.   REPORT 
 
2.1 On 12 January 2021 the Licensing Department received an application from Retail Fuel 

Limited for a new premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003.  The applicant has applied 
to licence a petrol station for the sale of alcohol and the provision of late night refreshment at 
1-17 Droylsden Road, Audenshaw, M34 5SP.  The application is attached at Appendix 1.  

 
2.2 Section 176 of the Licensing Act 2003 restricts the circumstances in which alcohol may be 

sold at garage premises.  The restriction applies where the premises are used primarily as a 
garage or which form part of premises which are primarily so used.  

 
2.3 Premises are used primarily as a garage if they are used for one or more of the following: 
 

 the retailing of petrol; 

 the retailing of derv; 

 the sale of motor vehicles; and 

 the maintenance of motor vehicles. 
 
2.4 The Licensing Act 2003, section 182 guidance states that with particular attention being 

drawn to section 5.23 and 5.24, where a Local Authority considers a premises licence 
application for garages and motorway service areas; 

 
5.23 It is for the licensing authority to decide, based on the licensing objectives, whether it is 
appropriate for that premises to be granted a licence, taking into account the documents and 
information listed in section 17(3) and (4), which include an operating schedule and  which 
must accompany the application.  
 
5.24 If a licence is granted in respect of a premises and the primary use of that premises 
subsequently changes (for example, the primary use becomes that of a garage rather than a 
shop) it would no longer be legal to sell alcohol on that premises. If a relevant representation 
is made, the licensing authority must decide whether or not the premises are used primarily 
as a garage. The licensing authority may ask the licence holder to provide further information 
to help establish what the primary use of the premises is (emphasis added). 

Page 9



 

2.5 The operating schedule of the application details the following licensable activities and 
requested hours: 

  

Activity  Days Hours 

Supply/Sale of alcohol off the 
premises 

Monday – Sunday 24 hours 

Late Night Refreshment 
(Indoors and Outdoors) 

Monday - Sunday 23:00 – 05:00 

Opening Hours Monday – Sunday  24 hours 

 
2.6 Following receipt of representations from Responsible Authorities and Interested Parties, the 

applicant has agreed to amend the application as follows; 
 
 Alcohol Hours 
 Reduced to 06:00 – 23:00 (Monday – Sunday) 
 
 Late Night Refreshment 
 This part of the application has been withdrawn. 
 
2.7 In addition to the above amendments to the application, additional conditions have been 

proposed by the applicant.  These are attached at Appendix 2.  
 
 

     3.  REPRESENTATIONS & EVIDENCE SUBMITTED 
 
3.1 Representations have been received by TMBC Licensing, Greater Manchester Police, TMBC 

Population Health, a Councillor and a member of the public. 
 
 TMBC Licensing 
3.2 A representation relating to the application provided Elise Brophy of TMBC Licensing.  A copy 

of this is attached at Appendix 3. 
 

 Greater Manchester Police 
3.3 A representation has been provided by PC Martin Thorley.  A copy of this is attached at 

Appendix 4. 
 

 TMBC Population Health 
3.4 A representation received from James Mallion on behalf of TMBC Population Health.  A copy 

of this is attached at Appendix 5. 
 

Councillor for Droylsden East 
3.5 A representation received from Councillor David Mills.  A copy of this is attached at Appendix 

6. 
 
 Members of the Public 
3.6 A representation has been received from a member of the public.  A copy of this is attached 

at Appendix 7. 
 
 
4. CONCLUSION AND OPTIONS FOR THE PANEL 
 
4.1 The Panel must initially determine from the evidence provided what the primary use of the 

premises is.  If the primary use is determined to be a garage then a premises licence should 
not be granted (i.e. the application be refused) as any licence issued would be of no effect 
pursuant to s176 of the Licensing Act 2003.  If the Panel determines that the primary use is 
not that of a garage then the Panel must then consider all of the evidence provided and 

Page 10



 

decide what (if any) steps to take as it considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives.  The options available to the Panel are; 

 
           (a) to grant the licence subject to – 

(i) such conditions that the authority considers appropriate for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives, and 

(ii)     current mandatory conditions; 
(b) to exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to which the 

application relates; 
 (c) to refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor; 
 (d) to reject the application. 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



   APPENDIX 2  

Additional conditions 

 

1. All staff engaged or to be engaged in the sale of alcohol on the premises shall receive 
training in age restricted sales. 
Induction training must be completed and documented prior to the sale of alcohol by 

the staff member. 

Refresher/reinforcement training must be completed and documented at intervals of 

no more than 6 months. 

Training records will be available for inspection by a police officer or other authorised 

officer on request. 

Training records will be retained at the premises or at the offices of the licence holder 

for a minimum period of 12 months. 

2. At least one personal licence holder will be available (this does not mean necessarily 
present at the premises) at all times that alcohol is on sale. 
 

3. All cashiers shall be trained to record refusals of sales of alcohol in a refusals 
book/register. The book/register will contain: 
 

- details of the time and date the refusal was made; 

- the identity of the staff member refusing the sale; 

- details of the alcohol the person attempted to purchase. 

This book/register shall be available for inspection by a police officer or other 

authorised officer on request. 

The book/register shall be retained at the premises or at the officers of the licence 

holder for a minimum period of 12 months. 

4.   An incident book/register shall be maintained to record: 

- all incidents of crime and disorder occurring at the premises 

- details of occasions when the police are called to the premises 

This book/register shall be available for inspection by a police officer or other 

authorised officer on request. 

The book/register shall be retained at the premises or at the officers of the licence 

holder for a minimum period of 12 months. 

5. There shall be no sale of single cans of beer, lager or cider from the premises.  
 

6. There will be no sales/supplies of beer, lager or cider  with an ABV over 6.5%. 
 

7. The licence holder will monitor the primary use of the premises and if transaction data 
demonstrates that the premises are excluded premises pursuant to S.176 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 the sale of alcohol will cease until such time as the data 

Page 41



demonstrates that the premises are not so excluded. Such data will be maintained on 
a 6 monthly basis and will be available on request to the police and the licensing 
authority. This condition will fall away in the event that S.176 is repealed. 
 

8. A digital CCTV system will be installed, or the existing system maintained, such 
system to be fit for the purpose. 
 

The CCTV system shall be capable of producing immediate copies on site. Copies of 
recordings will either be recorded digitally on to CD/DVD or other equivalent medium. 
 

Any recording will be retained and stored in a suitable and secure manner for a 
minimum of 31 days and shall be made available, subject to compliance with Data 
Protection legislation, to the police for inspection on request. 
 

The precise positions of the camera may be agreed, subject to compliance with Data 
Protection legislation, with the police from time to time. 
 
The system will display, on any recording, the correct time and date of the recording. 
The CCTV system will be maintained and fully operational throughout the hours that 
the premises are open for any licensable activity. 
 
 

 

Page 42



LICENSING ACT 2003 – AS AMENDED 

 
Representation Re Application for a Premises Licence 

 

From: The Licensing Section, Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council 

To: The Licensing Section, Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council 

Date: 08/02/2021 

Premises: Audenshaw Service Station, 1-17 Droylsden Road, Audenshaw 

Date of Application: 12/01/2021 

 
The Licensing Authority, in its capacity as a ‘Responsible Authority’ under the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003, hereby give notice of our objection to the grant of a premises licence in respect 
of the above premises. 
 
The reason(s) for the objection are as follows: 

Under Section 176 of the Licensing Act 2003 ‘No premises licence, club premises certificate 

or temporary event notice has effect to authorise the sale by retail or supply of alcohol on 

or from excluded premises.’ 

 

This includes premises used primarily as a garage or which form part of premises which are 

primarily so used. 

No information was provided within the application that would satisfy the Licensing Authority that 

this premises is used primarily as anything other than a garage. 

Footfall figures relating to customers for fuel only, the shop only and the combined use of shop 

and fuel were requested on the 12th of January 2021 to determine the primary use of the 

premises. 

No such evidence has yet been submitted and until evidential footfall figures are provided to 

determine the primary use of the premises, the application should be refused. 

 

The Licensing Authority also has great concerns regarding this application for the following 

reasons; 

 

This premises is situated within a residential area, Therefore we have great concern over the 

applied time of a 24-hour alcohol licence. There are no other premises within the surrounding 

areas of Audenshaw and Droylsden that currently sell alcohol for 24 hours. The latest off licence 

within the area is licensed to sell alcohol until 23:00pm. Therefore we believe the application to 

sell alcohol for 24 hours could result in an increase in public nuisance due to the potential high 

volume of customers visiting the premises as it would be the only off licence open within the area.  

 

The latest ON licensed premises within the area of Audenshaw and Droylsden are licensed to 

sell alcohol until 02:00am. We believe there is a possible risk of people leaving the premises 

close by who are already intoxicated to purchase more alcohol from this premises resulting in a 

possible increase of Crime and Disorder and Public Nuisance.  

 

The Licensing Authority seeks to encourage the highest standards of management in licensed 

premises and expects this to be demonstrated through the operating schedule. There is limited 

detail in areas of operational policies with regards 24 hour sale of alcohol, staffing levels or 

recognition of potential harm linked to the sale of high strength alcohol.  

The Licensing Authority would expect a much greater level of detail in how the applicant will 

promote the licensing objectives. 

Page 43



If the Panel is minded to grant this application, the Licensing Authority would request that the 

following conditions are attached to the licence; 

CCTV 
A tamper-proof digital colour CCTV system must be installed and maintained at the premises to 
the satisfaction of Greater Manchester Police.  
   
The system must run and record continuously for 24 hours a day, 7 days per week and 
recorded footage must be stored for a minimum of 28 days.  
   
The system must provide a clear head and shoulders view to an evidential quality on every 
entry/exit route and within any other vulnerable areas as identified by Greater Manchester 
Police.  
   
Recorded footage must be provided to a representative of any responsible authority on request. 
Such footage must be provided in an immediately viewable format and must include any 
software etc. which is required to view the footage. Any discs, portable drives or other storage 
media onto which footage is transferred must be provided by the premises and sufficient stock 
of such storage media must be kept on the premises at all times.  
   
A member of staff who is trained to operate the system and supply footage must be present at 
the premises at all times when licensable activities are taking place.  
   
The Designated Premises Supervisor must ensure that the CCTV system is checked at least 
once every week by a suitably trained member of staff. This check must include the operation 
of the cameras, the recording facilities, the facilities for providing footage and the accuracy of 
the time & date. A written record of these checks must be kept, including a signature of the 
person carrying out the check. This written record must be kept on the premises at all times 
and made available to a representative of any responsible authority on request.  
   
Suitable signage informing customers that a CCTV system is in operation must be placed in 
prominent positions within the premises, including information on the Data Protection Act and 
the Human Rights act. 
 
Staff Training 
Any staff employed at the premises will receive training by the Designated Premises Supervisor 
on first appointment and at least every three months thereafter. Training will include input on 
preventing underage sales, sales of alcohol to people who are drunk, application of the drugs 
policy and any other relevant matters. A written record will be kept of all training carried out. 
This record must be kept on the premises and made available for inspection by any responsible 
authority. 
 
List of Authorised Persons 
The Designated Premises Supervisor must maintain a written record of all members of staff 
who are authorised to sell alcohol. This record must include a photograph of the relevant 
members of staff to be kept on the premises at all times and be made available to a 
representative of any responsible authority on request.  
 
Challenge 25 
The premises must operate a “Challenge 25” scheme at the premise in relation to age 
verification for alcohol sales and other age-restricted products. Signs and/or posters must be 
displayed in prominent positions inside the premise to inform customers of this condition. 
 
Refusals Book 
A refusals book must be kept at the premises and must be used to record all refusals to sell 
alcohol for any reason. Where other age restricted products are sold at the premise, any 
refusals to sell such items to underage persons or persons who appear underage must be 
recorded. The details to be recorded must be as follows: 
                (i) Time, day & date of refusal 
                (ii) Item refused 

Page 44



                (iii) Name & address of customer (if given) 
                (iv) Description of customer 
                (v) Details of i.d. offered (if shown) 
The refusals book must be made available for inspection by responsible authorities on request. 
 
Personal Licence Holder to be on Premises at All Times 
A Personal Licence Holder must be present at the premises at all times licensable activities are 
taking place. 
 
Conditions relating to the sale of Lager, Beers and Cider 
No Sales of lager and cider in cans as a single item 
No sales of lager/beers/cider above 6.5% 
 
These conditions have been proposed to the applicant by the Licensing Manager on 2 
February, in addition to the above, the Licensing Authority has requested that the terminal hour 
for the sale of alcohol be restricted to 23:00hrs (Mon-Sun) 

 

   

 
 
 
A copy of this representation has been sent to the applicant. 
 
 
Signed: E Brophy 
 
Name: Elise Brophy 
  Regulatory Compliance Officer 
 

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 3 

GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE - REPRESENTATION 
 

About You   
Name PC Martin Thorley 

Address including postcode Ashton-under-Lyne Police Station 
Manchester Road 
Ashton-under-Lyne 
Tameside 
OL7 0BQ 

Contact Email Address Martin.thorley@gmp.police.uk 

Contact Telephone Number 07393145364 

 

About the Premises 
Application Reference No.   

Name of the Premises Audenshaw Service Station 

Address of the premises 
including postcode 

1-17 Droylsden Road, Audenshaw, Tameside, M34 5SPSt 

 

Your Representation 
Please outline your representation below and continue overleaf.  This should describe the 
likely effect of the grant of the variation on the licensing objectives on and in the vicinity of the 
premises in question. 

 
Please accept this as formal notification of the Greater Manchester Police objection to the 
request for a premises license to be granted in relation to the above premises.  

 
The grounds for the objection are Prevention of Crime and Disorder, Public Safety and the Prevention 

of Public Nuisance. 

 

This premise is a Petrol Station which is currently unlicensed. It does not sell alcohol and has opening 

times as a Petrol Station of 0700hrs-2200hrs. 

 

The premises are situated in a residential area and are in close proximity to residential properties. 

Droylsden Town Centre is only a short walk away there are at least 7 Public Houses within a 5 minute 

walk. 

 

As with other areas in Tameside, Audenshaw and Droylsden suffers from issues with on street 

drinking and other alcohol related anti-social behavior. The nearest late night bar venue is situated in 

Droylsden which is only a five minute walk away (0.3 miles) and this premises is only permitted to sell 

alcohol until 0200hrs with proportionate conditions including the use of SIA registered door staff to 

ensure the promotion of the four Licensing Objectives. 

 

I believe there is a distinct possibility that persons leaving these nearby Licensed premises will be 

drawn to the premises with the intention of purchasing more alcohol and as they will already be in a 

‘party mood’. There is a danger that groups of people will gather on the forecourt of the premises to 

consume alcohol, whilst they await their transportation home, be it tram, bus or taxi. 

 

There is a Metrolink line which runs from Ashton -under-Lyne to Manchester through Audenshaw 

passing directly outside Audenshaw Service Station with the nearest Tram Stop being in Droylsden 

Town Centre. The last tram from Droylsden to Ashton-under-Lyne is 2351hrs. The last tram from 

Droylsden to Manchester Piccadilly is 0021hrs. This reduces the options of transportation after 

Page 47



Page 2 of 3 

midnight. 

 

The above could place customers in danger with vehicles pulling onto the forecourt to purchase both 

petrol and/or alcohol and will certainly cause an added disturbance to the local residents. That said, 

the provision of alcohol at a Petrol Station could also lead to an increase in drink driving offences. 

 

There are no licensed premises in the Audenshaw or Droylsden area of Tameside Police District 

which are licensed to sell alcohol 24 hours a day so not only will there be a problem with persons 

leaving the local licensed premises but there may well be a wider spread issue with people coming 

from far and wide to purchase alcohol in the early hours of the morning. 

 

The nearest High Street Supermarket is Tesco in Droylsden which is licensed for off sales Monday-

Saturday until 23:00 and open until 16:00 on a Sunday but licensed for alcohol until 22:30. This is 

situated 10 minute walk from the applicant's premises. 

 

The application includes provision of late night refreshment taking place both indoors and outdoors until 

0500hrs. This in itself will cause disturbance to local residents with people coming from far and wide to 

purchase food and will undoubtedly increase the potential for additional reports of anti-social behaviour 

and unnecessary additional demand being placed on Police resources. 

 

 
I would ask that The Licensing Authority considers the following as key issues in relation to 
this application: 
 
The applicant falls short in evidencing the steps they intend to take in promoting all four licensing 
objectives. 

 
The proximity of the premises to local residents 
 
The general character of the surrounding area including crime and anti social behaviour (ASB) 
levels. 
 
The hours applied for licensable activities should be appropriate with regard to the nature of 
the location of the premises. 
 
I believe that persons who are alcohol dependant may be drawn to particular premises if they 
are licensed to sell alcohol at both later and earlier times than other licensed premises. 
 
Therefore GMP believe that to allow the premises to sell alcohol 24 hours a day will lead to an 
increase in alcohol related incidents in the area and will definitely cause greater disturbance to the 
residents to live in very close proximity to the premises. 
 
We therefore ask that the application is refused. 
 

 
PC 14627 Martin Thorley 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 48



Page 3 of 3 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



 

 

P
age 57



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 1

Complaint 

 
Complaint details

Your involvement I am the complainant

Which organisation Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council (TMBC)

Complaint is about Anything else

Reference

Complaint details I wish to object to the application for an alcohol and
food licence by retail Fuels Ltd. at Audenshaw Service
Station 1-17 Droylsden Road Audenshaw M34 5SP.
My objection is that this is a petrol station and in my
opinion should not be allowed to sell alcohol in view of
the Drink Driving laws.
There are sufficient outlets in the immediate area to
satisfy the needs of anyone requiring alcohol and
most certainly not for the 24 hours proposed, in
addition, the application to supply food is also
unnecessary as again there are adequate outlets in te
area.
if this application is allowed the high probability of the
Drink Driving law would be broken.
Please reject this application.
 
Sincerely
Morris Globe
12 Woodford Court
Williamson Lane
DroylsdenM43 7BJ
 
07939690163

Action requested As requested above, thank you

 
Contact 

Title Mr

First name Morris

Surname Globe

Address Flat 12
Woodford Court
Williamson Lane

Town Manchester

County

Page 59



Page 2

Complaint 

 
Contact 

Postcode M43 7BJ

Preferred contact method Email

Email address morrisglobe@talktalk.net

Alternative email address

Phone

Mobile 07939690163

Organisation

Category Resident

Date of birth 27/09/1937

 
About this transaction

Status Submitted on 18/01/2021 14:37

Contact method Self service

Entered by System

Request reference 2528645

Page 60


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	4 APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE – AUDENSHAW SERVICE STATION, 1 – 17 DROYLSDEN ROAD, AUDENSHAW, M34 5SP
	Appendix. 1 for APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE – AUDENSHAW SERVICE STATION, 1 – 17 DROYLSDEN ROAD, AUDENSHAW, M34 5SP
	Appendix. 2 for APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE – AUDENSHAW SERVICE STATION, 1 – 17 DROYLSDEN ROAD, AUDENSHAW, M34 5SP
	Appendix. 3 for APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE – AUDENSHAW SERVICE STATION, 1 – 17 DROYLSDEN ROAD, AUDENSHAW, M34 5SP
	Appendix. 4 for APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE – AUDENSHAW SERVICE STATION, 1 – 17 DROYLSDEN ROAD, AUDENSHAW, M34 5SP
	Appendix. 5 for APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE – AUDENSHAW SERVICE STATION, 1 – 17 DROYLSDEN ROAD, AUDENSHAW, M34 5SP
	Appendix. 6 for APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE – AUDENSHAW SERVICE STATION, 1 – 17 DROYLSDEN ROAD, AUDENSHAW, M34 5SP
	Appendix. 7 for APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE – AUDENSHAW SERVICE STATION, 1 – 17 DROYLSDEN ROAD, AUDENSHAW, M34 5SP




